
 

1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, JANUARY 23, 2023 
 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
 

1. ROLL CALL   
 

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
a. HOME ARP Funding Allocation Discussion (Community Relations Director/CCRD Chair) 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
b. TC Coley Center Update (Parks and Recreation)  
c. Downtown Parking Discussion (Downtown Development)  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)  
Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. ROLL CALL   
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of January 9, 2023 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS  
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
B. Non-Contiguous Annexation Request – J and J Daniels Farming Enterprises, LLC. - Located on the east side 

of South 111 Hwy. (Corner of South NC 111 Hwy. and Ditchbank Rd.) (Planning) 
C. Street Closing-Dakota Avenue (From East Fourth Street to East Fifth Street) East Fifth Street (From 

Humphrey Street to Dakota Avenue) (Planning)  
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
D. Nonprofit Funding Policy (FINPOL-N001) Adoption (Finance)  
E. CDBG Public Services Policy (Community Relations) 
F. CDBG Rehabilitation Program Procedures Manual (Community Relations) 
G. Approve Facility Use Lease for Balanced Choice Vending LLC at Goldsboro Golf & Event Center (Golf) 
H. Contract Award for 2023 Public Safety Complex HVAC Boiler Replacement Project (Police)  
I. Ratifying a Lease Agreement to use the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer’s Association Firearms 

Range (Police)  
J. Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Chad Post; 2853 US HWY. 70 W. Located on the 

southwest corner of US Hwy. 70 W. and NC 581 Hwy. (Planning)  
K. Contiguous Annexation Petition – JD Gupta.  Located on the south side of W. New Hope Rd. between 

Somervale Ln. and Twin Oaks Pl. (Planning)  
L. Advisory Board and Commission Appointments (City Clerk) 
M. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
N. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Melvin Dawson as An Employee of the City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 20 Years  
O. American Heart Month Proclamation  
P. Year of the Trail Proclamation 

 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



w.s. a

























Commission on Community 
Relations & Development



 CCRD Home ARP 
Recommendations

Council voted on two areas for funding

1. Non-Congregate Shelters

2. Su p p or t ive  Se r vice s  a s  d e fin ed  in  24 CFR 578.53.(e )

On Tuesday January 10th the Commission on Community Relations and Development discussed in detail how to allocate 
percentages to these categories. 

The Mayor, City Manager and Assistant City Manager were present should we have any questions. 

The commission voted a 60/40 allocation non-congregate shelter to supportive services. 

 Tent city inhabitants do not want to move. However, they are in need of services such as mental health 
counseling, job services, substance abuse rehabilitation. 

 There is a high level of opioid abuse across our nation. Opioids take the minimum of 3 months care and subsequent follow-
up to assure success. 

 Unsheltered homeless are spread to several areas of the city. 

 This community is in need of non-congregate shelters. (max 6mo.)

 Supportive services needed range from mental health counseling to job track and or education. 



The CCRD would like to thank 
the Council and City Manager for 

trusting us and allowing us 
latitude to continue to serve the 

communities and City of 
Goldsboro.



T.C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER

Felicia L. Brown, MPRTSM, CPRP
Parks and Recreation Director

January 23, 2023

w.s. item b



BACKGROUND
• In 2016, City Council decided to renovate what is now the T. C. Coley Community 

Center; renovations were completed in 2018 at a cost of ~$210K

• Plans for a non-profit to operate the facility did not materialize

• In February of 2019, City Council directed Parks and Recreation to operate the 
facility for one year; during this time non-profits would be able to use the facility at 
no charge

• In February of 2020, City Council directed a lease agreement be implemented with 
Ashford Boxing Club for the Gymnasium and approved Parks and Recreation to 
charge rental rates for the rest of the facility

1/19/2023 2



PARKS AND RECREATION PROGRAMMING
• In September of 2022, Herman Park Center was closed due to positive mold test 

results

• Parks and Recreation Staff housed in Herman Park Center were relocated to what is 
now the Herman Park Admin Bldg (formerly known as the Senior House)

• Programs that occurred at Herman Park Center and the Senior House were 
relocated to other facilities including T. C. Coley Community Center

1/19/2023 3



T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER
• Annual operating costs are estimated to be ~$35K – expect this number to increase 

with relocating programs due to Herman Park Center closing

• Rental revenue for FY22 was $8K – expect this number to increase with Herman 
Park Center closing

• City Council approved repairing the roof over the Recreation Room and interior 
painting at an estimated cost of ~$55K during November 21, 2022 meeting

1/19/2023 4



T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER NOW
• Pottery Program meets in Meeting Room (back of building) 

• Senior Programming - card groups meet in Recreation Room

• Special Populations Activities occur in Recreation Room

• Rentals occur in Meeting Room (with mirrors) and Recreation Room

• In process of moving billiard tables and other Leisure Center items to Recreation 
Room

• Other programs will be added, including summer camps

1/19/2023 5



QUESTIONS?

1/19/2023 6



1 of 11 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
JANUARY 9, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on January 9, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 Adoption of the Agenda. Mayor Ham requested the addition of the National Law Enforcement Appreciation 
Proclamation to the agenda under Ceremonial Documents. He also requested the addition of the Oath of Office for Mayor 
Pro Tem Polack before Old Business.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Broadaway, and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda.  

Administering the Oath of Office.  Laura Getz, City Clerk administered the oath of office for the reappointment as 
Mayor Pro Tem of the City of Goldsboro to Taj Polack. 

Old Business. 
Homelessness Funding Discussion. Dr. David Tayloe with Goldsboro Pediatrics shared information with Council 

regarding homelessness. He also shared his support for 4 Day Movement to receive the homelessness funding.  

Boards and Commissions Appointments. Laura Getz, City Clerk shared the information below regarding current 
Boards and Commissions applications.  

Council has three boards and commissions applications in their folders. The first application is from Octavius 
Murphy for the vacant GWTA position.  There are also two applications in the folders, one that is requesting a position on 
the Recreation Advisory Commission and one that her first request is for the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with 
Disabilities (which has no vacancies) and her second choice is the Recreation Advisory Commission.  If Council approves 
these 3 applications, the clerk will bring a resolution for appointment to the next meeting.  

There is also a vacant student position on the Recreation Advisory Commission. There is no ordinance amendment 
needed to change the terms on the board, that change can be made by the clerk’s office with a resolution of appointment.  

The clerk asked council to consider moving Thomas Lockamy into the full member position on the Historic District 
Commission.  This appointment will leave two alternate positions vacant on the Historic District Commission. The clerk 
will add this position to the resolution at the next meeting if council approves. 

Council discussed the applications and vacancies. Council consensus was to move forward with the applicants 
submitted by the clerk.   

New Business.  
Borden Mill Development Discussion. Jarrod Burgess with Oracle Design shared the following presentation: 

Item A



2 of 11 
 

  

  

  

  

  



3 of 11 
 

  

  

 
 
Council discussed the presentation to include railroad right of way, ownership, and risk.   
 

Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Policy Revision. Mayor Ham shared information regarding the 
Public Comment Period and Public Hearing Policy. He also shared information regarding the Public Comment Period time 
limit and clock, and the proposed policy revision adding a requirement to have a sign in sheet for the public comment 
period. Council discussed the policy and the requirement to sign in.   

 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to adopt the policy with the adjustment that citizens that wish to speak during 

the public comment period are required to sign in before speaking and provide their name, address, email address, telephone 
number and subject of the comments. The name of the citizen would be the only information recorded in the minutes. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

 
Planning Commission Annual Report. Anthony Slater, Planning Commission Chair shared an update regarding 

Planning Commission members, the purpose and duties of the Commission and the 2022 Planning Commission activities.   
 
HUD Annual Community Assessment. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director shared the following 

presentation: 

  



4 of 11 
 

  

  

 
 
Consent Agenda Review. Items F - J on the consent agenda were reviewed.  
 

The meeting recessed at 6:18 p.m. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on January 9, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Pastor Ryan Barbato with Bridge Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

 
Mayor’s Comments. Mayor Ham shared comments regarding City Council and asked that they all work together. 
  
Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of December 19, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.   
 
 



5 of 11 
 

Presentations. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Anthony Carmon as An Employee of the City of 

Goldsboro for More Than 28 Years. Resolution Adopted. Anthony Carmon retired on December 31, 2022 as a Police 
Major, with more than 28 years of service, with the Goldsboro Police Department. Anthony began his career on October 12, 
1994 as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police Department. On July 16, 1997, Anthony was promoted to Investigator 
with the Goldsboro Police Department. On June 25, 2003, Anthony was promoted to Police Sergeant with the Goldsboro 
Police Department. On November 18, 2009, Anthony was promoted to Captain of Patrol with the Goldsboro Police 
Department. On April 29, 2015, Anthony was promoted to Major of Investigations with the Goldsboro Police Department, 
where he has served until his retirement. Anthony has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City 
Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro, of expressing to Anthony Carmon their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the 
City over the years and express to Anthony Carmon our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health 
in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect 
from and after this 9th day of January, 2023. 

 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023–1 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY  
ANTHONY CARMON AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 28 YEARS” 
 

Public Hearings.  
Z-27-22 SREG Real Estate Development (Office & Institutional I Conditional Zoning District to General 

Business) – South side of N. Berkeley Blvd. west of Langston Dr. (Formerly Danny Hood Realty). Public Hearing 
Held and Ordinance to Approve Adopted.  
 

ADDRESS: 604 N. Berkeley Blvd. 
PARCEL #: 3519535312 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Rebecca Price 
 
APPLICANT: SREG Real Estate Development (Anel Sinanagic) 

 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from an Office & Institutional I Conditional Zoning District (O&I-1 CD) to the 
General Business (GB) Zoning District. The purpose of the General Business (GB) Zoning District is to accommodate the 
widest range of uses providing general goods and services to the community. The district is intended to promote high 
quality, accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area. 
 
Access:  N. Berkeley Blvd.   
Area: 0.43 acres                              
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:                         
 

North: Shopping Center 

             South: Residential 16 

East: General Business Conditional Zoning 

West: General Business Conditional Zoning 

 
The property currently consists of a vacant commercial office building, that was the former site of Danny Hood Realty.  
 
Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates this within the Commercial land use designation. 
 
Commercial: This designation puts a future emphasis on in-fill development, the desired development density is 10,000 
square feet of building per acre. 
 
The General Business (GB) Zoning District is identified as a corresponding district for the Commercial land use 
designation.  
 
This is a rezoning proposal for a 0.43-acre parcel to be rezoned from the Office & Institutional I Conditional Zoning District 
(O&I-1 CD) to the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The subject property was formerly utilized as a real estate office 
site. The adjacent uses are a Take 5 Oil Change and a vacant commercial office building. With this parcel having direct 
frontage on N. Berkeley Blvd and based off of the future land use designation it is ideal to be included in the General 
Business (GB) Zoning District. This parcel also satisfies the desires of the land use plan by providing a location for infill 
commercial development.  



6 of 11 
 

 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that there is adjacent General Business (GB) 
zoning, as well as the fact that the General Business (GB) Zoning District is one of the predominant zoning districts in 
existence on Berkeley Blvd. This property also satisfies the infill development desires of the land use plan, and the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the land use plan.  
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on December 19, 2022, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning proposal. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the Consistency Statement and recommend approval to 
City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 4-0.  
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has  
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or council shall vote to  
deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the 
Planning Commission has provided and adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-1 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Z-28-22 G.S. Langdon, Inc. (Residential 16 to Residential 12) – South side of Green Dr. located east of South 
Dr. and west of Cedar Rd. off N. Berkeley Blvd. Public Hearing Held and Ordinance to Deny Adopted.  

 
ADDRESS: 302, 308, 310 Green Dr. 
PARCEL #: 3529281883, 3529294015, 3529294180 

 
PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: G.S. Langdon, Inc. 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential 16 (R-16) Zoning District to the Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning 
District. The purpose of the Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District is to accommodate both single-family and multi-family 
residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature.  

Density: 12,000 square feet for the first unit and 6,000 square feet for each additional unit. All 3 of the subject properties are 
less than 24,000 square feet and would only be able to support 2 units if the property is utilized for multi-family. 

Access:  Green Dr.  

Area: 0.49 acres, each lot is the same size. 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North: Residential 16 

             South: Residential 16 

East: Residential 16 

West: Residential 16 

O&I-1 and General Business aren’t adjacent but are in the general vicinity. 

Existing Use:  The properties currently are vacant. 

Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Medium-Density Residential 
land use designation.  

Medium-Density Residential: This designation is given based on existing residential development patterns, constraints to 
development, and the location of infrastructure. These designations exist in areas that have water and sewer service or where 
plans exist to extend water and sewer service.  

The Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District is not a corresponding district with the Medium-Density designation; however, 
utility services are in place to support higher density development and the size of the subject parcels would limit multi-
family development to a maximum of two units per lot. 



7 of 11 
 

This is a rezoning proposal for three 0.49-acre parcels to be rezoned from the Residential 16 (R-16) Zoning District to the 
Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District. The primary difference between the existing zoning district and the proposed R-12 
Zoning District is that R-12 allows for multi-family use. While this is a general rezoning and all uses must be considered, if 
the properties were to be developed as multi-family, the density would not be out of character with the area or be a 
detriment to the surrounding single-family dwellings.  

Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and 
NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations. 

Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that the size of the subject properties limits its 
multi-family capability to only support two units per lot. Staff also acknowledges the fact that existing utilities are in place 
to support more than one unit per lot. Staff would also like to address the fact that in the event that two of the subject 
properties were recombined, and a multi-family development exceeding three units is proposed for development, that this 
would require a Special Use Permit and quasi-judicial review from City Council. 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on December 19, 2022, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning proposal. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the Consistency Statement and recommend approval to 
City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 4-0.  

Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has 
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or council shall vote to 
deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed.  

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. The following people spoke:  

1. Joann Clark, South Drive, spoke in opposition of the rezoning and submitted to the clerk, a petition with 51 names 
against the rezoning.  

2. Jean Potter, Birch Drive, spoke in opposition of the rezoning.  
3. Bob Boyette, Green Drive, spoke in opposition of the rezoning.  

No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 

Councilman Batts made a motion to deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this 
rezoning request to be inconsistent. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-2 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Z-30-22 Glandon Forest Equity, LLC. (R6 to NBCZ) – West side of S. Herman St. between E. Elm St. and E. 
Pine St. Public Hearing Continued to the February 6, 2023 meeting.   
 
PARCELS #: 3509-22-4680   
           3509-22-5630    
                   3509-22-5690 
                       3509-22-5842 (portion of: 27,714 sq. ft. or .63 acres) 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Southern District Convocation Church 
             Gregory Jones 
             Dorothy Jones 
 
APPLICANT:   Glandon Forest Equity, LLC 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning for 1.45 acres of property from Residential (R6) to Neighborhood 
Business Conditional Zoning District (NBCZ) limiting the property to a commercial facility proposed for use as a retail 
sales store. Additional uses for the commercial facility have been proposed by the applicant if the proposed use ceases to 
exist and are included in the conditional rezoning request.  
 
The Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District is established to provide the services and commercial development 
needed to serve primarily the adjoining neighborhoods. The district is intended to promote the development of small 
pedestrian-oriented establishments whose character and use is compatible with nearby residential neighborhoods. The 
maximum building gross area is twenty-four thousand square feet.   
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
 
                          North: Residential (R6) 
                          South: Residential (R6)/Neighborhood Business (NB) 

East: Residential (R6) 
             West: Residential (R6) 

 
Existing Use:  There are four separate parcels associated with the proposed rezoning request.  One of the four lots is 
currently occupied by an existing single-family dwelling. The three remaining lots are vacant.  



8 of 11 
 

 
Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates all four parcels within the High-Density Residential 
land use designation. The High-Density Residential designation has been identified as the preferred land-use based on 
existing residential development patterns, constraints to development and the location of infrastructure such as water, sewer, 
and a transportation network. The Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district 
within the High-Density Residential land-use designation. 
 
As previously stated, this is a conditional rezoning proposal for 1.45 acres to be rezoned from Residential (R6) to 
Neighborhood Business (NBCZ) Conditional Zoning District limiting the use of the property to a commercial retail sales 
store.  This 1.45 acres will be on a singular parcel through the recombination process if this conditional rezoning requires is 
approved. 
 
Despite the fact that the Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district for the High-
Density land-use designation, there are a several factors which could support the rezoning request.  Most of the subject 
properties have been vacant for approximately fifty years.  Although in-fill development is a preferred use in the High-
Density Residential Development land-use designation, the highest and best use of the property may be for commercial 
purposes.  The proposed conditional rezoning request would be compatible with existing commercial zoning and uses in 
proximity to the site.  
 
If the rezoning request is approved by City Council, the owner/developer will be required to submit for site plan approval 
before building permits are issued. 
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base.  No comments or concerns were received. 
 
The following uses are permitted by right in the Neighborhood Business (NB) Zoning District and are being proposed by the 
applicant to be included in the Neighborhood Business Conditional Zoning District (NBCZ): 
 

• Churches     
• Community centers (public) 
• Fire station 
• Government Offices 
• Library 
• Public parks 
• Police station 
• Post Office, service facilities 
• Public Emergency service centers 
• School, fine arts or martial arts 
• School, private elementary, secondary 
• School, public elementary, secondary 
• ABC Store, liquor sales 
• Banks w/ drive-throughs 
• Banks, finance and insurance offices 
• Barber/beauty shop-excluding home 
• Clinic, medical therapeutic 
• Computer operations, data processing 
• Day care centers-child 
• Food stores-retail only 
• Health spas, fitness and tanning 
• Home services-carpet cleaning, home cleaning, interior design, locksmith, upholstery and general personal goods 

 repair, etc. 
• Laundry, coin operated and laundromat 
• Offices, businesses, medical and professional excluding retail trade and home occupations 
• Pharmacy, less than or equal to 15,000 sq.ft. 
• Restaurants and employee cafeterias when located within the principal building 
• Restaurant, general 
• Retail, small nondurable goods not in its own category containing less than 30,000 sq. ft. 
• Tanning salon 

 
The proposed Neighborhood Business Conditional Zoning request is inconsistent with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan.  However, staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact the rezoning request would be 
compatible with the existing Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning and uses in proximity to the site.  Due to the property 
remaining vacant and never used for residential development for almost fifty years, staff has concluded that this conditional 
rezoning to Neighborhood Business (NB) would be appropriate for serving the immediate needs of the surrounding 
communities. 
 



9 of 11 
 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on December 19, 2022, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the rezoning proposal. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the Consistency Statement and recommend approval to 
City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 4-0.  
 
Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning Commission has 
provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, or council shall vote to 
deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent. 
Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 
 
Kenny Talton, Planning Director shared there was incorrect information on the application. All the owners are not listed on 
the application and the church that owns property to the north of the subject property, Planning does not have evidence to 
show that the bishop has the legal capacity from the church to act on the church’s behalf. For these reasons, Planning is 
requesting Council continue the hearing until next month.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack asked if a fence will be being installed around the retention pond. Mr. Talton shared they could look 
at that when a site plan was submitted for review.   
 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to continue this to a date certain, to be February 6. The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.  
 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Natalia Newkirk shared concerns regarding housing conditions at Goldsboro Housing Authority properties. 
2. Winter Goodson shared concerns about recent comments regarding the Goldsboro Housing Authority and its 

Executive Director.  
3. D.R. Halliday shared concerns about recent violence and issues with Goldsboro’s youth.  

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 

were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Councilman Broadaway moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items F-J be approved as recommended by the City 
Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.  

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Municipal Ordinance to Enact a Speed Limit Change for a Section of NC 581. Ordinance Adopted. The N.C. 
Department of Transportation is seeking to update existing ordinances on NC 581 and has requested that the City adopt a 
concurring ordinance. 

 
NCDOT has conducted an engineering and traffic investigation for a 35-mph section of NC 581 between SR 1008 (Stevens 
Mill Road) and SR 1243 (Oberry Center Road). The Department concluded that the existing speed limit of 35-mph no 
longer applies for this section of NC 581. To enact the new speed limit zone of 45-mph as recommended by NCDOT, the 
City will need to adopt a concurring ordinance for this section of roadway. 
 
 Due to this section being within the city limits: 
 
 Enact 45-MPH Zone for: 

• NC 581 between SR 1008 (Stevens Mill Road) and SR 1243 (Oberry Center Road) 
 
City of Goldsboro current ordinances do not include blanket speed limits for NCDOT maintained streets; therefore, the City 
must adopt an ordinance specific to NCDOT maintained streets within the existing city limits. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance enacting the speed limit for a section of NCDOT 
Highway System Street located within the existing city limits of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (7 
Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-3 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING THE SPEED LIMIT FOR A SECTION OF NCDOT HIGHWAY 
SYSTEM STREET ITHIN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 

44th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing. Approved. An application was 
received from the Sunrise Kiwanis of Goldsboro, requesting permission to hold their 44th Annual Greater Goldsboro Road 
Run on Saturday, April 22, 2023 from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. 

 
The race is scheduled to begin at Spruce Street on Center Street and end between Chestnut Street and Spruce Street on 
Center Street and runs through the downtown area of Walnut Street, Evergreen Street, and Andrews Street, Berry Street, 



10 of 11 
 

Claiborne Street, Mulberry Street, and Pine Street.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have 
been notified of this request. 

 
The race has three race routes they will be using for the 10K, 5K, and 1-mile runs.  All three routes will start and finish in 
the same area and will have staggered start times. The time requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.  

 
Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 

1.  All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
2.  A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 

  3.  All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department. 
4.   The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved in the logistical    

   aspects of this event. 
 

It was recommended that Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, Spruce Street, 
Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 43rd Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run event 7:00 a.m. to 
11:30 a.m. on Saturday, April 22, 2023.  Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (7 Ayes) 
 

SU-16-22 Billiards Room (Pool Hall w/ ABC Permit) – 130 S Center St. Approved. This Special Use Permit 
was voted on and approved at the December 19, 2022, meeting and is not eligible for further deliberation or discussion. 
 
Council shall review the Order to Approve, and Mayor Ham shall sign the order. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Broadaway/Batts (7 Ayes) 
 

SU-17-22 Tattoo Parlor (Tattoo Parlors) – 206 E Walnut St. Approved. This Special Use Permit was voted on 
and approved at the December 19, 2022, meeting and is not eligible for further deliberation or discussion. 
    
It was recommended that Council review the Order to Approve, and Mayor Ham to sign the order. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Broadaway/Batts (7 Ayes) 
 

Revising Council Meeting Schedule. Schedule Revised.   
The Goldsboro City Council normally meets the 1st and 3rd Mondays of every month for their Regular Council Meeting.   
 
The following meeting should be cancelled due to a scheduling conflict: 
 

- Monday, March 6, 2023 
           
It was recommended that Council cancel the Monday, March 6, 2023 Council Meeting. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Broadaway/Batts (7 Ayes)  
 

City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon shared a facilitator from Chapel Hill will assist in discussions regarding 
downtown parking on January 26 from 5:30 p.m.to 6:30 p.m. at the Wayne County Museum. A special meeting will be held 
and has been noticed. He also mentioned the Wayne County Community Covid level is high.  

 
Ceremonial Documents.  
National Law Enforcement Appreciation Day. Read by Mayor Pro Tem Polack, The Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed January 9, 2023, as NATIONAL LAW ENFORCEMENT APPRECIATION DAY in Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, and called upon the people of Goldsboro to take time not only on January 9, 2023, but throughout the year to show 
their support of the law enforcement officers that put their life on the line each day to make our community a better place to 
live. They asked citizens to show your support by thanking your local police, wearing blue, turning your social media blue, 
or shining a blue porch light. 

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 

Councilwoman Jones said Happy New Year to the citizens of Goldsboro and her constituents. She shared the following: last 
year was challenging, economically and socially. My desire is we move forward in finding resources to assist with our 
elderly, with their electric bills and their utility bills. We will continue to work for affordable housing. May we become a 
village for safety. Violence of any kind is unacceptable. Our children are being shot down in the streets and in the middle of 
the day. We have to begin to learn to work with one another and be each other’s eyes and ears. I am very troubled with the 
increased shootings, this has affected all of us. My condolences to the family and friends of those who have been affected. I 
ask that we all work together. My community is gathering together to work on ideas and strategies to see how we can 
become more effective in helping our children. The shooting and a death of a loved one is always tragic and I desire that we 
all become a village and a community that works together, and bands together. Councilwoman Jones announced a Suicide 
Awareness Prevention workshop, January 14 from 10:00-12:00 at Saint James AME Zion Church, sponsored by the North 
Carolina Council of Churches and Councilwoman Jones. 
 
Councilman Broadaway congratulated Major Carmon on his 28 years of service and stated he has done a magnificent job. 
He thanked the public for their patience in our leaf collection and debris collection efforts. He thanked the public works 
crews that have had been working extra hours and they're working without one or two trucks. He stated, they are low on 
personnel, and they are low on equipment. I would just like to thank them.   



O+ 

y

U

O

U

0

bA

4r

U

3 

3

b .

o

V

ted

ani °

J° '

3 

3

o

b

0

o

0

3

4O° 

o

o , 

o

bA

t. 

C +^+ 

3

O

co

O

O

y

U

U • 

dp

O

M '

y

Q '

o `

o

id

c

O

O

s 

o

N

U

o . 

o •

d

o°
o

b

0

0

0

3

o

3

OwC5 ' 

00  

p

oA  :: 

O

3

3

cn

3

y

0 - " 

o

o> ; 

0

0

b ° 

czCIS
3

k

4c. -
r

an

on

0

0  

O ' 

U

on

o. 

o  >, 

b  -

0  

U

F., 

Fr ++ 

U

U

U

U '

C

N '

C

it • -+ 

L ¢ 

O

M

O

s 

U

N

to -

a

y -

d

y

C,

3`" 

U

p

t

U

N

O

o

M

No ° 

o

o

4. ° 

Com", 

vi

N

M —+ .

g:

tFr

i% 

F" 

N

cl

O .' '_' ^.

r' 

cn

cC

cC

P. 

En

o

U

Cd

3

o , ...

4. 

cn

U>> 

o ; >, 

44

x

p

N " 

cis

OU «
i  ,° ~

O

to  

3

W

N 

oQ)-
v4'

G

b

v

03

c

Cq3 .>

rA ° 

o

U

O° 

CO

o

U

Zo
o

U

s 

O  , 

N > 

C° 

y '

G

own

Z ¢, -

C

O

0

O. 

O

U

b

O

o

U , 

p

U

0 ' 

U' 

isCd

y0
3

y

ami

U ° 

cl

U

O

0

ai   

s:   

b  

UU

t 

y
y.. 

U ..

c: 

00

i" 

s:  

O

bA 

Ur  

sU, 

cn

U

vi &

0 -. 

L". 

O-+' °" 

U ^' . 

3

cC

tG

U

Fr

yNyr3 
Fi" • 

N

w ; 

H

O --

i

U .

s." 

U «

3

y

U '

C

U

O

b

b

Q

00 +- 

O

O

v' 

N

U

cd

O

O

N

r- >, >' '- 

sU. 

dig

U .

0

b •.. 

c

s 

3

b

o

on -

o

0

O

b° 

0° 

O

U

y -

C

U >, • 

U .     

U , , 

c ,-

t~' ,

4   

U

U

U  

U

3  , 

N

p

p

U

Q' 

U ^

C • 

Y

ou

p

i

U

O

to

p

U

3, 

U + 

G

O

0

0>

oUYN= 
Up

O

U

o

m

A

U

U

ON

Nt00

ro

15

O

U

C° 
c 

b

o

x  

x

b

oC4N

U  o .

0

O

0a$ 

NC7 °' ma

U



Item B



OzWUzazO

L

cuc
a) 

p

v -

a

0

cu

U

Z '

O =

N

Q+, 

L

4° 

xQOU +

a1

Q

U

p

w

0.

O

Om
O

Q -

p

0

m -

0

C'

Op

O

w

Q -

0

t0

V) 

pU

CL
4- 

m

In

V) 

aJ

U "

a

N

N

V) 

ct

oU
N

o

a) -

0>- 

6

03

0

o

ra+ + 

7; 

CLC

0

0 "

aU

OO
d

CU :

3cu
0 _ 

i

O

OLn

z

L- 

0

Q :

3

Uv
o

Q

1

O

U

C

3

E

o

J

3

O

f6 - 

o

f

f6

0

a

v

o

o

Q

a

m= 

p

N

O

O

V) -

a

C

m

CO

p + 

N

O 

O

N

p

u

s? 

a) '

L

aJ

aJ

Q

a1

L = 

LO

O

4• 

C

L

O

O

U

3

S- 

n

N

U , 

N

C, 

N _ ..

O

t

l6

S

O > 

4 + '

D }, 

O

fC

a '

a

J

L ' (

0

of

L

p

N +' 

p

U= 

ri

y
N

U

W +' 

O

O

f0

0

O

pp
c`

nC

a1 = 

4- 

cu

X

N ` . 

O

S 

bA

M

p

4a

v

O

a

bA +

U- 

i1

v

O

v

O

a

N

N

0

O

N

p

SZ

Q

O

cd

O

S~ 

D

iH

c

v

v° = 

C7 + 

v° 

4

J  

o

O

Cd

Z

a 

bA

3

o

Z

o

U

kn

M

x ° 

x

O

ma, 

p

0

t '

a

O

U

o

O '^

b4

L

CU

Ln_ 

a 

L •

N

L >. -

0

L

4- 

T

Q

Q  

4"

i

CCS

Qi

Q

M

aJ

p

U ++ > 

to = 

o ++ 

p

O

CCS

U

Ln

O . 

di

C` 

N

c

x

a ' 

N

a' 

v >` 

U

Q

v .= 

U

c

3

u

3 '

5

o

U" 

C_ 

aJ

O

O

C

L

Q

N "

O

to

ate+ 

x

O

a-, 

a > 

m -

O

C

by +, +- 

G-
0 >~ 

fi" 

N  

U

L

v

O

a 

L== 

v

a "

a _ 

t

L

C

O

bn

O ;

1

U

bq

v

U

OL ~ 

O

fa

V1

4J -

a

O = 

fC

F, 

i-+ 

L

0

V

U

p

y / • 

O

it

p

4

U

u

M

a) 

m

O

L

C ' 

aJ = 

x

Q +

J

ti

O

W

p

U

4J

v

O

d

O

y

9

L

dA

O ° ++ 

a) '

a

In

j

n

5~ 

by ... 

t

U

O

O

cC

U

C

Q

V) 

z

O

s~ ( 

k

cC

tb

L

N +, 

C

L - = 

Ln

l0 _ 

In

bA

O

W

N ' 

hY•
1 , 

O

ate, > 

O

C *' > 

x

O ++ = 

Q) 41

O

l0

U

f0

aJ

a  

V = 

30

U

U _ 

p_ 

U

by

Z

p

fC

a) 

N

aJ _ 

4 , -

O '

L

In

p

p

aJ

U

J

r -
I

m

u, 

4a

cd

CCS

G

C - 

O

L

Z

O

a1

d

0 = 

p ' 

N •

a) — 

41

L ,

Q  

N

r -
I  

V]    

O •

sem ' 

k    

Q+  

Q

p

O

aJ

t

a1

V = 

Q

a) 

In

L

V

U >

Z

O '

i

aJ ` 

i 

O

4 + 

U

t

N

E

C (

v

of

4- '

a

f0 = 

GJ

co

N

a + 

N

t

O   

U

tr  

a? _ 

M

s~ 

O

a1 +, 

L

N

U }' 

C -

C

O

p

U- 

Q

O

ip

N

L

W

p

p

i

x

0

O 

O

U

cd

U + 

a

3

O

aJ

U

p

p '—, 

O

O

U +

O

m

i

O

O

OU

cd

U

p

U

O

O

O

n

N +, 

Q

LO

t

N

aJ

t

O

V

CO _ 

W

C

U

C

r

O

S=

1

C

to

M "

a

L = 

p

41

W

z

L> 

v ++ 

O

aJ

OC

x

C

p >~ - 

bQ

U- 

U

W .

0

L

O

a) 

mN
O

L

L

C

p = 

U

a) 

W

Z

U ,., 

O

W

S~ , 

bA

Z

Y [ 

4- -

O + -

a

4- 

p

Q

O

VI

v

L

L

r° 

v

aJ

t

OU. 

O _ -

p

s~ 

CU

o

zU. . 

a\ " ~ 

O

t

00

r- 

00

O

a

O

ro

O

f0

j

M

aJ

v

v

N `- 

N +

J

p

lN6 +' ' }' 

LU

m >

1 + . 

M -

0 .

fl

oo

N

M

U

C7

n

N +

T+ _ '

L !

n

aJ

O = 

N

O +' 

L

N -

a . 

W

In

5~ 

O

M

N

cct

U

U

O

Q

O

f0

a 

M

to

N >, " `

n

O

3

U

N

O

O

a

v

co

N

a

a

a= 

a

a, _ ` 

a== 

L = 

t ° 

U

oo
0 >~ 

y

3

o

W

a) 

4J

W

f0

O

O

W

O

M

C

to

W

O ++ 

W

O

Q

p

a, 

aJ

a) 

U

00

U - 

U

cd

4' 

Q

L

CC
a-+ 

V) 

v

OC +, 

a 

w

O +

P ++ 

U [ 

O- 

M

Q, 

W

L

W *' -= 

O

W

3

a

W +

J

C

L

W

N

U

N

W-

0

m

a) 

3

ai

4- 

C . 

1

o

bA

z

p +' 

O

O

M = 

U

Q

O

O

O

N = 

i

O

ice+ _ = 

M

W

4J = 

O *

Li-' =

O

bA

Q

A

U

N

N

y

Q

L

3 °— 

3

Q) 

3

3

a, _ 

3

L,  

3.-

E = 

z

c 

x '

o

N

LNC
t  

C) 

L = _ 

a __ ._, 

mLL

Ln

CLO

o

m

E

Z

Ln

N

V

Q

a 

cn

Z

o

a

l0

O

O

Q) 

C

O

O

t

w

p

x

p

a) 

Cp

co

L

m

p

W

r -
I

U

C7

i

c0

C7

co ++ ++ -

0

U •

N = 

t

C

4- 

N

U +•+  

J

m



vLcr

4 

ULJ

4- 

O

L

N
Y  00

t

U

tQ

4••+ 

L

U

3L

O 

O

s
Q

O

t

f6

N

E

u

L

O — 

v

O

U

Vi

C

UO
c1 
W } 

4) 

4- 

O

ami . 

t

o

Q

t -

0

O

O

w

O

O

M

CO

4J

4

N

ate+ 

UIQ

C

cu

O

O = 

a

a- 

4

U

toN

c

V  N

O

C

N

O

L

M

Q

41

O

0

ME

vi

U

41  
s

O >, 

F- 

s

Q

O

N

M

1* 

Ln

LD

I- 

all

4J
v

m

UN41

v

L7

c

O

N

O

J

41

U

4J

C

4J

p

O

V

t

m

m

N

Q

N

N

m

O

w

1) E

m

OU

O

O

O

O

N

Q

O

cu

OQLv

t

a

m

s

Q

a 

O

s

OL

N

0

4J

Q0
V

N

L% 

L

bn

N

M

ate•+ 

X

C

N

M

O

a

N

m

Oits

O

S

s

0

0

V) 

4-

1

a

Q

U

L

cn

L

N

41

4J

N

Ln

C

4) 

m

m

N

3

N

F- 

H

vL
cr

4 

ULJ
4- 

O

L

NY  

00

t

U

tQ

4••+ 

L

U

3L

O 

O

s
Q

O

t

f6

N

E

u

L

O — 

v

O

U

Vi

C

UO

c1 

W } 

4) 

4- 

O

ami . 

t

o

Q

t -

0

O

O

w

O

O

M

CO

4J

4

N

ate+ 

UIQ
C

cu

O

O = 

a

a- 

4

U

toN
c

V  N

O

C

N

O

L

M

Q

41

O

0

M
E

vi

U

41  s

O >, 

F- 

s

Q

O

N

M

1* 

Ln

LD

I- 

all

4JvUN41

v

L7

c

O

Q

J















C





aMNONOzWUzQzDO

v

s

o

0t

m

4- 

z

4- 

o

0

iz

N

N . mm
U

i

m

m

Nc

a

O

O

QN

3

M

1
4-

U

v

O

GJ

O

0

O

v

4

t

N

U

C+ 

v

ON
L

o

c

4- 
o

5

N

t

a, 

4J

Q

v

O

o

L

N

0

4- 

Q

Q

N

O

U

O

O

ii

L

tci

4- 

cu

U

O

t

4- 

c

v

O

N

c

aa, 

mw

mo

c

3cu

J3

O

m

v

O

c

0O

O

O

O

to

co

U

O

C

mac-, 

C) 

V

t

v

v

N

c

c=

0

N

N

O

U

U

O

Y

00

Q

EN

N

4- 

a

N

N

O

c

Q

LfII

4J

O

O

O

O

m

C

4J

ate+ a

L

G

Q" 

QJ

c

0

Lel

aai

m

m

Q

zui

cu

N

c

L

c

Q

cu

w

o

v

E

c`

a

a, 

o

u

a, 

aO
o

o

0

cu

3

C

cu

cvi

a 

00

to

O

t+ 

Wm

v

v' 

O

50) 
0

l7

iJ

N

NQ 

L

W
L

0

LN

N

b: 

L

OAc

c

L

a, 

ce

N

Q

4' -

Z

C

v

c

o

aU

c3

3

co

N

u '

x

m

a 

mCtf
O

W

m

O

O

U. 

E

N

N

N

a' 

W

1Ato
v

B

Q

U

ii
aJ

O

0

NJ

L

0

cc

t

Q

4Js

o

ccNJ

Q

z

NJ

O

m

J

O

2

C

Q

O 

f0

LJ

3

rn

o

3

c° 

z

F- 

a

Ni

0

N

c

O

Lna

cu

p

Lp

N

wi

7

o

mU

MN0Nm
4- 

0AMNNt4JO

GJ
4- 

4aQ









D



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR NONPROFIT FUNDING ( FINPOL- N001) 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, provides for the welfare and safety of its citizens through the
execution of various programs for which it has constitutional and statutory authority; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to contract certain services to qualified nonprofits if
it is determined by the City Council to be the most efficient use of General Fund appropriations; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish a policy of Nonprofit Funding to provide staff the directives
to execute any such contracts approved through the annual budget appropriations process; and

WHEREAS, the policy is established in accordance with the following: 

1) Constitutional Authority — Article V, Section 2( 7) of the North Carolina Constitution permits

local governments to " contract with and appropriate money to any person, association, or
corporation for accomplishment of public purposes only." 

2) North Carolina Constitution Article V, Section 2( 1) public purpose requirement. All public

funds, no matter the source must be expended for the benefit of the citizens of a local

government, and not solely for the benefit of particular persons or interest. 

3) Statutory Authority - NC G. S. § 160A- 20. 1 " Authority. - A city may contract with and
appropriate money to any person, association, or corporation, in order to carry out any public
purpose that the city is authorized by law to engage in." 

4) The City is authorized under NC G. S. § 160A- 209 to contract with nonprofit organizations to

provide services that it may furnish to its citizens under its constitutional authority. The City
may provide the following: 

a) Arts Programs and Museums. — To provide for arts programs and museums as authorized

in G. S. 160A-488. 

b) Economic Development. — To provide for economic development as authorized by G. S. 
158- 7. 1. 

c) Historic Preservation. — To undertake historic preservation programs and projects. 

d) Human Relations. — To undertake human relations programs. 

e) Hospitals. — To establish, support, and maintain public hospitals and clinics, and other

related health programs and facilities, and to aid any private, nonprofit hospital, clinic, 
related facility, or other health program or facility. 

f) Housing. — To undertake housing projects as defined in G. S. 157- 3, and urban
homesteading programs under G. S. 160A- 457. 2. 

g) Joint Undertakings. — To cooperate with any other county, city, or political subdivision of
the State in providing any of the functions, services, or activities listed in this subsection. 

h) Parks and Recreation. — To establish, support, and maintain public parks and programs of

supervised recreation. 



i) Public Transportation. — To provide public transportation by rail, motor vehicle, or any
other means of conveyance other than a ferry, including any facility or equipment needed
to provide the public transportation. 

j) Senior Citizens Programs. — To undertake programs for the assistance and care of its

senior citizens. 

k) Urban Redevelopment. — To provide for urban redevelopment. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the governing board of the City of Goldsboro
hereby adopts and enacts the Nonprofit Funding Policy ( FINPOL- 001). 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23' day of January, 2023. 

ATTEST: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

id Ham ayor
f

V

a 
e a  

N  7  , • e.f

k























E



  

City of Goldsboro 
Community Relations and Development   
 

 

  

 

CDBG Public Services 
 Policy Overview 

 
 
 
  



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

2 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION 3 

1.1 Background 
1.2 Funding Process 
1.3 Pre-Proposal Conference 
1.4 Proposal Evaluation Criteria 

SECTION 1 4 

SECTION 1.1 Eligible activities 4 

SECTION 1.2 Ineligible Activities 4 

SECTION 1.3 Public Services cap 5 
  
SECTION 2 5 
 

SECTION 2.1 National Objective: Low-moderate income benefit 6 

SECTION 2.2 National Objective: Slum / Blight 7 

SECTION 2.3 National Objective: Urgent Need 7  

SECTION 3 8 

SECTION 3.1 REQUIREMENTS  8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

3 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
 
1.1 Background 

The City of Goldsboro’s Public Services is funded with Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds.  The primary objective of the federal CDBG program is to develop viable 
communities by providing decent housing, suitable living environments, and economic 
development opportunities, principally to low-and-moderate income residents.  Goals and 
objectives for the City’s CDBG and HOME programs are described in the City’s Five-Year 
Consolidated Plan (2020-2024).  The City’s current 2020-2024 Consolidated Plan can be 
viewed on the City’s website. 

 
1.2 Funding Process 

The City of Goldsboro will announce (on its website and social media platforms) the availability 
of CDBG Public Services funds and will utilize a competitive Request for Proposals (RFP) 
process to determine which agencies will be funded.   
 
Below is an anticipated timeline of events related to the funding process.  The City of 
Goldsboro reserves the right to modify and/or adjust the following schedule to meet the needs 
of the service.   
 
RFP Process Date and Time 
Pre-Proposal Conference (Required) TBD 
RFP Advertisement TBD 
Deadline for Written Questions TBD 
City Response to Questions  TBD 
Proposal Due Date and Time TBD 
Selection & Funding Notification TBD 

 
 
1.3 Pre-Proposal Conference 

Attendance at one conference is a prerequisite for prospective applicants to be considered 
for funding.  Details on the mandatory conference will be posted on the City’s website and 
social media platforms. 

 
1.4 Proposal Evaluation Criteria 

The City of Goldsboro will not carry out an official bid nor hold a public bid opening meeting.  
Proposals will be evaluated based on, but not necessarily limited to the following criteria listed 
below: 
CDBG Eligibility  Target Clientele Eligibility 
Program/Project Delivery Capacity Program/Project Proposed Budget  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

4 

 
Section 1  
 
1.1 ELIGIBLE PUBLIC SERVICE ACTIVITIES  
 

➢ This section outlines activities that are eligible public services under the CDBG program. The 
following is a summary of the topics in this section, applicable statutory and regulatory 
citations, and other reference materials cited from HUD. 
 
The CDBG regulations allow the use of grant funds for a wide range of public service activities, 
including, but not limited to: 

 
Activity 

Employment services (e.g., job training) 

Crime prevention and public safety 

Health services 

Substance abuse services (e.g., counseling 
and treatment) 
Fair housing counseling 

Education programs 

Energy conservation 

Services for senior citizens 

Services for homeless persons 

Welfare services (excluding income 
payments) 
Down payment assistance 

Recreational services 

 
 
Section 1.2  
 
INELIGIBLE PUBLIC SERVICE ACTIVITIES 
 

• The provision of “income payments” is an ineligible CDBG activity if these payments are  
provided as a grant. 

• Income payments are payments to an individual or family, which are used to provide basic  
services such as food, shelter (including payment for rent, mortgage, and/or utilities) or  
clothing. 

• However, the entitlement rules note that such expenditures are eligible under the following 
conditions:  

 
✓ The income payments do not exceed three consecutive months: and  
✓ The payments are made directly to the provider of such services on behalf of an  

individual or family. 
 

• Income payments that are provided as a loan are permissible within the public services cap. 

Key Points: 
 

 
✓ To utilize CDBG funds for a public 

service, the service must be either: 
 

• A new service; or  
 

• A quantifiable increase in the 
level of an existing service. the 
result of events not within the 
control of the local 
government). 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

5 

• Political activities are ineligible. 
 
Section 1.3  
 
PUBLIC SERVICES CAP 
 
The total amount of CDBG funds expended for public services activities must not exceed 15 percent 
(15%) of the City’s annual CDBG allocation of funds plus 15 percent (15%) of program income 
received. 
 
In addition, the CDBG regulations offer flexibility in using CDBG for certain public services,  
particularly services designed to increase employment opportunities, outside of the 15 percent (15%) 
cap.  
 
The eligibility options include:  
 
Provision of assistance to microenterprises as a separate eligible activity. This includes technical 
assistance, business support services, and other similar services to owners of microenterprises or 
persons developing microenterprises. 
 
 
Job training, job placement and other employment support services that are carried out by a qualified 
105(a)(15) nonprofit development organization as part of certain types of projects, and which are 
specifically designed to increase economic opportunities including peer support programs, childcare, 
counseling, transportation, and other similar services.  
 
Economic development services carried out in connection with special economic  
development activities also do not count against the 15 percent (15%) cap. These services include:  
 

➢ Outreach efforts to market available assistance.  
➢ Screening of applicants.  
➢ Reviewing and underwriting applications for assistance.  
➢ Preparation of all necessary agreements.  
➢ Management of assisted activities; and  
➢ Screening/referral/placement of applicants for jobs generated by CDBG-eligible economic 

development activities, including training for those persons filling positions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

6 

 
 
Section 2 
 
2.1 NATIONAL OBJECTIVE: LOW-MODERATE INCOME (LMI) BENEFIT 
 

▪ CDBG-funded public service activities are typically categorized under the LMI Benefit  
National Objective as either Area Benefit or Limited Clientele activities. As shown in exhibit  
2-1 below, the distinguishing factor between the two categories is whether the service will be 
offered to all residents of a particular Low and moderate income (LMI) area or to a particular 
group of LMI residents in the entire community. 

 
▪ Under the Area Benefit criteria, the public service must be offered to all residents of an area 

where at least 51 percent (51%) of the residents are LMI. The area must be clearly delineated by 
the City and must be primarily residential. 

 
▪ Under Limited Clientele activities must benefit a specific targeted group of persons of which at 

least 51 percent (51%) must be LMI. To meet the LMI Limited Clientele criteria, the activity 
must: 
 

i. Serve at least 51 percent (51%) LMI, as evidenced by documentation and data 
concerning beneficiary family size and income.  

 
ii. Have income-eligibility requirements which limit the service to persons meeting 

the LMI income requirement, as evidenced by the administering agency’s 
procedures, intake/application forms, income limits, and other sources of 
documentation.  

 
iii. Serve a group primarily presumed to be LMI such as abused children, battered 

spouses, elderly persons, severely disabled adults, homeless persons, illiterate 
adults, persons living with AIDS and migrant farm workers; or  

 
iv. Be of such a nature and in a location that it may be concluded that the activity’s 

clientele is LMI. 
 

Exhibit 2-1 
Determining if a Public Service Activity Qualifies 
As an Area Benefit or Limited Clientele Activity 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

7 

 
 
2.2   NATIONAL OBJECTIVE: SLUM / BLIGHT  
 
Public service activities that aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight in a designated 
area may qualify under the Slum/Blight National Objective (Area Basis).  
 
However, this category is rarely used for public service activities since the activity must meet the 
following qualifying criteria: 
 
The area in which the activity occurs must be designated as slum or blighted. The following tests 
apply: 
 

▪ The delineated area in which the activity occurs must meet a definition of a slum, blighted, 
deteriorated or deteriorating area under state or local law.  

 
▪ The area must also meet either one of the two conditions specified below: 

 
▪ At least 25 percent of the properties throughout the area exhibit the following:  

 
(a) Physical deterioration of buildings/improvements.  

 
(b) Abandonment of properties.  

 
(c) Chronic high occupancy turnover rates or chronic high vacancy rates in commercial or 

industrial buildings.  
 

(d) Significant declines in property values or abnormally low property values relative to other 
areas in the community; or  

 
(e) Known or suspected environmental contamination. 
 

▪ Public improvements throughout the area are in a general state of deterioration 
 
Documentation must be maintained by the City on the boundaries of the area and the conditions that 
qualified the area at the time of its designation. The designation of an area as slum or blighted must 
be re-determined every 10 years for continued qualifications. 
 
 
 
2.3 NATIONAL OBJECTIVE: URGENT NEED  
 
It is possible for public services activities to qualify under this National Objective if the public service 
is designed to alleviate existing conditions that pose a serious and immediate threat the health or 
welfare.  The conditions must be of recent origin or recently became urgent.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



  CDBG Public Services Policy  

  

8 

 
 
 
Section 3 
 
3.1 REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICES GRANT  
 
All applicants must meet the following minimum criteria to be considered for funding: 
 

1) Must be an IRS Certified 501(c)(3) organization in good standing. 
 

2) Have Articles of Incorporation (Must be certified by the State of North Carolina). 
 

3) The organization’s services must be performed within the city limits of Goldsboro. 
 

4) Must be ready to use and fully expend the funds within 12 months of the agreement. 
 

5) The organization’s services must meet CDBG national objectives as identified by HUD. 
 

6) Must have been actively engaged in providing service to the targeted community in the 
past 24 months in the capacity for which the organization is seeking funding. 

 
7) Must provide a copy of its most recent financial audit or financial report. 

 
8) Must have a Board of Directors that meets on a regular basis. 

 
 

Eligible applicants: 
 
Will enter into a contractual agreement with the 
City of Goldsboro 

Will be required to submit and file quarterly 
reports on expenditures and services 

Must comply with all federal, state, and local 
laws, including nondiscrimination laws 

Will be paid on a reimbursement basis (after 
services are provided and after quarterly reports 
are received) 

Maintain appropriate program and beneficiary 
documentation for a minimum of 3 years 

Comply with request for on-site monitoring 
visits by the City 

 
 
 

*Please Note: 
Contracts will not be awarded to parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or 
ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities in accordance with the Federal 

debarment and suspension rule, 49 CFR 29. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



F



























G



RESOLUTION NO. 2023--,3

RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH

BALANCED CHOICE VENDING LLC. 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns Goldsboro Golf Course and Event Center; and

WHEREAS, Balanced Choice Vending LLC has need of the golf course kitchen/ bar
space to prepare, vend, and sale meals, and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Goldsboro have a need for meals to be serviced at the

Goldsboro Golf Course and Event Center, and

WHEREAS, the city is capable of accommodating the request for space without harm to
the City, and staff is requesting that council approve the lease agreement with Balanced Choice
Vending LLC, and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the use of said space, Balanced Choice Vending LLC
will pay a rate of $600.00 per month plus 5% net of all monthly sales. The term of the lease will
be for three ( 3) years with the option to renew for an additional term of three ( 3) years at the end

of the initial term. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the lease agreement with Balanced
Choice Vending LLC. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after January 23, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler

Ham, ayor







































H



RESOLUTION No. 2023- V

RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CONTRACT FOR PUBLIC SAFTEY COMPLEX

BOILER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Complex HVAC Boiler System is original to the 1975 construction of

the building and its current condition warrants replacement before failure. 

WHEREAS, on Thursday, September 8, 2022 at 2: 00 pm the City of Goldsboro received three

responsive bids for the Public Safety Complex Boiler Replacement Project; and

WHEREAS, Hoffman Mechanical Solutions, is a reputable company and provided the lowest

responsible, responsive bid; and

WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City award the bid to Hoffman Mechanical Solutions for

the Public Safety Complex Boiler Replacement Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Hoffman Mechanical Solutions in
the amount of $113, 232. 62, to provide services for the Public Safety Complex Boiler Replacement Project. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this day JQ/ 16A2 z 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

d Ham, ayor



























I



RESOLUTION NO. 2023— 

RESOLUTION RATIFYING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH

WAYNE COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER' S ASSOCIATION, INC. 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro entered into a lease agreement with Wayne County Law
Enforcement Officer' s Association, Inc. on January 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has need to provide firearms training annually to sworn
personnel of GPD as required by NC Department of Justice; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that council ratifying the authorization for the Chief of
Police to have executed the agreement and approving the agreement with the Wayne County
Law Enforcement Officer' s Association, Inc. for the use of firearms training for GPD sworn
personnel; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will agree to terms of the lease upon signatures, to pay
the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer' s Association, Inc. the sum of $3, 500. 00 annually
from January 1, 2021 until December 31, 2026. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro
North Carolina, that this Resolution ratifies the actions taken by Goldsboro Police Department, 
the authorization of the Chief of Police to have executed the agreement and approves the

agreement with the Wayne County Law Enforcement Officer' s Association, Inc. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
23rd

day of January, 2023. 

Attested by: 

aura Getz, City Cle

iWavid Hatn, Mayor







J









K















L



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 6
RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS

TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City government; and

WHEREAS, the terms of several members on the City' s Advisory Boards and Commissions have
expired or been vacated due to members moving or resigning; and

WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizens have expressed a desire to serve upon the
indicated Board or Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the specified Boards and
Commissions. The terms of the appointees shall expire on the dates indicated: 

GWTA Board of Directors

First Term Appointee

Octavius Murphy Term Expires 12- 31- 2023

Historic District Commission

Filling an Unexpired Term
Thomas Lockamy ( From ALT to Full) Term Expires 12- 31- 2023

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission
First Term Appointees

Margaret Delbridge Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

Filling an Unexpired Term
Iris P. Robinson Term Expires 12- 31- 2023

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23` d
day of January, 2023. 

Attested by: 

OL-. v 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

yid H , Mayor



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

December 2022 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item M



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

December 2022 

Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 

Date Prepared:  January 13, 2023 
 

• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on December 7th at the W.A. Foster Center.   

• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on 

December 13th.   CCRD Executive Board met on November 30th.   Member of the CCRD participated in the annual 

Christmas parade on December 3rd. 

• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on December 15th.    

 

• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended JCPC regular monthly meeting on December 9th. 

2. Staff attended the CALM Executive Board meeting on December 13th.  

3. Staff attended City’s Employee Appreciation event on December 15th.  

4. Staff attended a requested meeting with WCPL Director on December 19th to discuss GYC collaboration.  

5. Staff coordinated an Angel Tree gift pick up on December 21st. 

6. Department meetings & trainings were held on December 1st, 14th, 19th, and 20th. 

 

• Community Development Activities:  

1. Staff met for HOME-ARP discussions on December 1st, 2nd, and 13th. 

2. Staff attended HUD’s HOME-ARP Allocation Plan webinar on December 13th. 

3. Staff engaged in 7 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of December.      

4. Staff engaged in 1 phone consult with NCHFA Case Manager for the month of December. 

       

• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and twenty (20) requests for assistance for the month of 

December. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   

2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 

Consumer/Other 

Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 

2021 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 0 4 2 0 4 5 1 8 9 2 2 0 3 

Consumer & Other 

Requests 

2 8 21 10 12 9 12 10 16 10 30 13 13 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 

December 2022 

Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 

Date Prepared:  January 13, 2023 
 

Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Housing: No heat Referred to Grand at 
Day Point Manager 
(Chad Calloway) 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 8 Informed City’s CDBG Rehab. Program will begin soon & made 
referrals to Habitat for Humanity & Wages 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

3 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

City to enforce delivery 
of gas to residence 

1 Notified that the City could not enforce the gas company to deliver gas 
sooner 

Rental assistance 1 Provided community resources list 
Donation to food banks 1 Provided local food bank listing 
Housing 4 Provided community resources list/Referred to 4Day 

Movement/Referred to HACG 
Concern of tree falling 
onto property owner’s 
vacant lot 

1 Referred to Planning Department 

Crutches Needed for 
homeless citizen 

1 Consulted with MCPD/Pair of crutches received and delivered 

Total Requests: 20  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
December 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: January 17, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 6  potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interest regarding downtown. 

• Working with the ACM to facilitate administrative needs of the GWTA Roof Addition  
• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM and potential consultant. 
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse.  
• Board work planning for 2023. Proposed work plan to be approved in January 2023. 
• Neighborhood Revitalization Task Force discussions to identify potential actions/steps to address blight. 
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. In testing phase. Planned roll out in Jan. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           
• On-site visit with Mike Ogburn to start the appraisal process of Goldsboro Union Station. Results due in January. 
• Continued work with Randall Gross, a consultant for downtown residential development needs, specifically in 

the 300 and 400 blocks of S. Center St. 

• Staff is working with IT to determine placement of security cameras in public parking lots to improve visibility 
and address safety concerns. 

• Planning for public parking forum, scheduled for January 26th at Wayne County Museum. Facilitated by Dwight 
Bassett. 

• Erin is participating in the 2022-2023 Leadership Wayne Program. Attended an Education work day on 
December 15. 

• Completed insurance claim for 2021-2022 public art piece that was damaged on S. Center St. 
• Transformation Grant discussion with potential grant writer. Funding would assist with stabilization of 

Goldsboro Union Station 

• HUB Events: Luminaries for Love on December 18th hosted by Wayne Co. Chapter Firefighters Burned Children 
Fund 

• Extended offer to lead candidate for Business & Property Development Specialist. Start date Jan. 11. 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• DGDC Merchant Meeting on December 6, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees met on 
December 13, Executive Committee on December 14 and DGDC Board of Directors of December 14.   

• Annual Chamber Christmas Parade on December 3 
• Downtown Holiday Trolley Rides – Dec. 6, 13 and 20 
• Downtown Holiday Shopping Passport – concluded December 15 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• Erin is participating in Leadership Wayne, October 2022 through May 2023.  
• Grant solicitations for Arts Council Grassroots Fund, Duke Energy & Wells Fargo. Exploring Additional Grants  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates: 
• New Business opened – Cry Freedom Missions Shoppe & Cafe. 120 E Mulberry St coming soon. 
• Arts Council Relocation is Underway – working to identify a new location.  
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 14,876, 23,815 check-ins  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
December 2022 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  01-17-2023 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• This project is 85% complete. 
 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Final payment to the contractor was made on August 19, 2022; 
• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 

 
2017 Wastewater System Improvements – FB2020-002  

• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash 
Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street; 
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital 
Campus; 

• Staff submitted final pay application to the Finance Department. 
 
Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk  

• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to 
Alabama Avenue then down Alabama Avenue to Oak Street. 

 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and 

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections have been completed for 2022. 

 
Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 

• Staff is completing final design in-house; 
• Staff submitted a new application during the Fall funding round and is awaiting a decision. 

 
Water System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work is nearing completion. 
 



2 

Wastewater System Asset Inventory and Assessment 
• WithersRavenel project work is nearing completion. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• CDM Smith edited and submitted final scope of engineering services to DWI. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Pilot area work has begun; 
• Staff continues to work with CDM Smith on project data and details. 

 
2” Galvanized Water Line Project 

• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022. 

 
Water Treatment Plant Assessment 

• Final report is complete. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
DECEMBER 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: January 18, 2023 
 

 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues November-21 Adjusted Budget November-22 Collected
General Fund 16,260,678$    46,526,373$        16,023,725$    34.44%
Utility Fund 8,612,548        24,228,129          9,937,027        41.01%
Downtown District Fund 35,751             117,019               35,707             30.51%
Occupancy Tax Fund 473,531           1,191,450            505,752           42.45%
Stormwater Fund 910,638           1,981,528            1,022,798        51.62%
     Total 26,293,145$    74,044,499$        27,525,009$    37.17%

Expenditures
General Fund 16,528,061$    46,526,373$        19,437,419$    41.78%
Utility Fund 5,248,736        24,228,129 6,265,665 25.86%
Downtown District Fund 46,563             117,019 34,452             29.44%
Occupancy Tax Fund 275,749           1,191,450 178,396 14.97%
Stormwater Fund 601,739           1,981,528 928,423 46.85%
     Total 22,700,849$    74,044,499$        26,844,355$    36.25%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

November-21 Adjusted Budget November-22 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 8,628,609$      19,271,704$        8,463,004$      43.91%
Charges for Services 10,566,342      30,030,307          11,403,013      37.97%
Revenue Other Agencies 2,961,735        16,372,366          3,258,283        19.90%
Other Revenues 2,532,538        3,248,319            1,974,921        60.80%
Fund Balance -                   1,792,806            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 1,603,920        3,328,996            2,425,787        72.87%
     Total 26,293,145$    74,044,499$        27,525,009$    37.17%

Expenditures
Labor 11,541,148$    29,745,929$        13,442,943$    45.19%
Non-Labor 11,159,701      44,298,570          13,401,413      30.25%
     Total 22,700,849$    74,044,499$        26,844,355$    36.25%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual November-22 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           536$                     9,514$             
Surplus 154,548$         -$                      3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Employee Christmas Party 25$    
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Health Maintenance Program -$     

Transfers - Dec 2022 - Human Resources 25$    

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Salaries & Wages Regular -$     
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Consultant Fees 2,640$    

Transfers - Dec 2022 - Downtown Development 2,640$    

IT Scott Williams Salaries & Wages Regular -$     
Transfers - Dec 2022 - IT -$    

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 350$    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Travel -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Contract Services -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Leaf Vacuum Loader -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Bonus 313$    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Garbage Packer 25,000$    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Trash Container Purchases -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Trash Truck -$     
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Refuse Transfer Trailer 6,018$    

Transfers - Dec 2022 - PW Solid Waste 31,681$    

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$     
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Fees & Dues 3,000$    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Protective Clothing 400$    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Shoes-Steel Toe -$     

Transfers - Dec 2022 - Parks & Recreation 3,400$    

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Medical Exams 120$    
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$     

Transfers - Dec 2022 - Water Treatment 120$     

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Medical Exams 180$    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$     

Transfers - Dec 2022 - Water Reclamation 180$     
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Nov 2022 76,092$    
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-Nov 2022 300,888$    

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_1 - Copy Transfer Summary Dec 1/18/2023 10:47 PM

Transfers Out
  -$  
  (25)$  
  (25)$  

  (2,640)$  
  -$  

  (2,640)$  

  -$  
  -$  

  -$  
  (1,000)$  
  (3,000)$  
  (1,129)$  
  (2,010)$  

  -$  
  -$  

  (2,130)$  
   (22,412)$  

  -$  
  (31,681)$  

  (3,000)$  
  -$  
  -$  

  (400)$  
  (3,400)$  

  -$  
  (120)$  
  (120)$  

  -$  
  (180)$  
  (180)$  

  (76,092)$  
  (300,888)$  



Prepared Date: 1/4/23 12:00 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 1/18/23 11:05 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 12/31/2022 11/30/2022 12/31/2021 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,438,052.13$               4,558,137.75$               5,431,967.13$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 6,485,487.95$               7,468,694.61$               7,524,649.67$               2.55%
PNC - Debit Account 1,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 4,120,428.14$               4,116,089.92$               11,078,359.01$            1.38%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 253,585.84$                  252,745.99$                  249,723.42$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 8,935,329.15$               8,905,736.21$               4,406,962.28$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,435,845.18$               4,421,154.09$               4,368,277.82$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$                                 48,076.56$                    n/a
Truist MMA 16,085,043.26$            11,057,245.98$            -$                                 2.55%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock 414,266.49$                  414,262.97$                  1,650,611.60$               0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,166.06$               2,380,145.85$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,870,735.96$               1,870,349.42$               1,886,018.86$               0.24%
Totals 48,419,940.16$           45,445,562.79$           36,645,646.35$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
December 31, 2022

Cash & Investment FY2023 12-31-22 1/18/2023 11:05 PM



Fund Name Date From For Amount

Police-Other Restricted Funds 8/25/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,531.50$     

1,531.50$     

Police Other Restricted Funds 10/7/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$           
Police Other Restricted Funds 10/28/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$           
Police Other Restricted Funds 11/19/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$           
Police Other Restricted Funds 10/26/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,100.00$     
Police Other Restricted Funds 11/2/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,000.00$     
Police Other Restricted Funds 12/8/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,500.00$     

Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 12/1/2022 NCTA P & R 4,000.00$     
7,750.00$     
9,281.50$     

Donations Received Report

Quarter Ending 12/31/2022
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Totals

Fiscal Year to Date - Total Donations

FY22-23

Quarter 1 Ended 9/30/2022 - Total Donations

Quarter 2 Ended 12/31/2022 - Total Donations

Donations FY22-23 FY22-23 1/18/2023 11:00 PM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - December 2022
Prepared: TLW 01/05/23
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Granting Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description
Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget 
Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to 

Date 
 Current 

Amount Spent  

 Amount 
Spent to 

Project to 
Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) 
Cash Flow Fund

HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$        328,479$        -$                 262,778$        -$                 278,892$        (16,114)$         C2101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$        214,732$        -$                 -$                 -$                 20,000$           (20,000)$         C2101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$        351,137$        -$                 170,143$        -$                 180,389$        (10,246)$         C2101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$        237,076$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 C2101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$        427,303$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 C2101
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$        354,122$        -$                 86,510$           -$                 87,740$           (1,230)$           C2101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$        250,738$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 C2101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$        907,913$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 C2101

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$        100,000$        -$                 96,570$           -$                 96,804$           (234)$               C2101
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$        150,000$        -$                 79,175$           -$                 88,775$           (9,600)$           22
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$     4,604,077$     -$                 5,435,033$     -$                 4,179,246$     1,255,787$     R1102
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$        200,946$        627$                227,913$        -$                 106,537$        121,376$        P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant State S 1/3/2019 21,366$           21,366$           -$                 18,408$           -$                 18,408$           0$                     P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$           47,003$           -$                 28,120$           14,315$           42,435$           (14,315)$         P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$           34,766$           -$                 13,906$           -$                 30,381$           (16,475)$         P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 108,628$        108,628$        -$                 87,179$           -$                 87,179$           (0)$                   P3106
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$     7,189,383$     -$                 7,385,809$     -$                 6,527,315$     858,494$        R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5 Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$        202,083$        -$                 202,083$        -$                 202,083$        -$                 R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$        966,688$        -$                 966,688$        -$                 966,688$        (0)$                   R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$           25,750$           -$                 25,750$           -$                 25,750$           -$                 R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 94,616$           94,616$           -$                 19,681$           -$                 19,681$           -$                 R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$     8,813,514$     29,593$           8,935,329$     -$                 -$                 8,935,329$     R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$     9,083,790$     -$                 4,851,571$     -$                 8,519,172$     (3,667,601)$    S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$     1,259,802$     -$                 639,892$        -$                 659,235$        (19,343)$         S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$     8,684,163$     -$                 8,695,113$     -$                 8,367,780$     327,333$        S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. Rehab Private P 10/11/2017 598,574$        598,574$        -$                 598,574$        -$                 596,216$        2,357$             S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$     30,000$           -$                 30,000$           -$                 30,000$           -$                 S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004 State S 1/24/2022 300,000$        304,500$        -$                 -$                 -$                 292,625$        (292,625)$       S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$        101,500$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 S1108

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install. Federal F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$     3,717,200$     -$                 35,000$           -$                 265,513$        (230,513)$       W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$     2,114,307$     -$                 1,484,909$     -$                 1,517,550$     (32,641)$         W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$     6,029,395$     -$                 30,000$           -$                 25,000$           5,000$             W1113

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$   11,150,000$   -$                 -$                 -$                 376,000$        (376,000)$       G1102
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$           80,000$           -$                 32,691$           -$                 -$                 32,691$           G1103

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$        632,943$        -$                 547,943$        -$                 251,072$        296,871$        G1104
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$     5,048,522$     -$                 5,046,649$     -$                 4,980,164$     66,485$           G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$     6,417,326$     -$                 6,417,323$     -$                 6,235,308$     182,015$        G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 30,570$           30,570$           -$                 43,576$           7,805$             33,292$           10,284$           G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 15,728$           15,728$           -$                 15,977$           -$                 14,294$           1,683$             G1108
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$           56,351$           1,500$             61,723$           463$                17,254$           44,469$           P3104

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,372,871$     1,372,871$     -$                 1,250,213$     120,935$        436,588$        813,625$        T2201
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$     1,151,600$     -$                 1,136,500$     -$                 8,537$             1,127,963$     F3111

Total 82,769,816$   83,509,461$   31,720$           54,958,728$   143,518$        45,583,903$   9,374,825$     

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2022-12 Dec Grants 2022-12 December 1/18/2023 10:57 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
December 2022   
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: January 6, 2023 
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 50% of the time. 50% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:28.   
  

  The full response within 8 minutes occurred 97.6% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Truck Displays, Christmas Parade, Toys for Tots, Jingle in the Park, Wreaths Across 
America, also Christmas Parades with Eagles Pointe and O’Berry Center.  We reached 627 Adults and 945 
Children with fire prevention materials.  

  

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2940 

Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5   4 1 3 3 1 1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 

Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 

Other: 66 53 68 55 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781 
Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6  2 7 6 5 55 

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069 
Vehicle Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422 

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554 
Other: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681 

Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24 

Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
December 2022 
Date Prepared:  January 18, 2023  
 
 
Human Resources  

• Completed Wellness Assistance Benefit 2023 enrollment 
• Completed Employee Appreciation Event and Survey 
• Updated list of Safety Sensitive and CDL employees 
• Assisted with Interview Committee for Public Works 
• Retirement presentations for Public Works employees 
• Auditing evaluation issues to finalize 2022 annual evaluations 
• Finalizing of the Police Recipient Scholarship process with police and finance 
• Completing Hearing Screenings 
• Scheduling upcoming needed CPR classes 
• Implementation of Dual Employment Policy 
• Implementing Succession Plan 
• Completed Investigation on employee complaint 
• Revised Investigation Summary Report 
• Promoting Holiday Wellness Challenge for employees 
• Promoting Drink More Water Initiative 
• Scanning and importing employee documentation in Laserfische files and Implementing Electronic 

Filing System 
• Kickoff and Promotion of 2023 Biggest Winner Challenge 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation January 18, 2023 

 
Safety   

• December City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• December 7 - Human Resources Staff Meeting 
• December 9 - Assisted HR staff with material pick up for employee appreciation breakfast. 
• December 13 – Park Maintenance Safety Inspection. 
• December 16 – Attended the Parks and Recreation luncheon 
• Evaluated the Rider contract for the entertainment at North Carolina Freedom Festival 
• December 21 – Meeting with Amanda at Travel and Tourism concerning safety of the building. 
• Visited City Facilities for Department of Labor posters. 
• Observing solid waste employees in the field making sure they are complying to policy. 
• December 30 – Investigated a MVA involving a GPD Officer 
• Zoom meeting with Doug McGrath concerning the NCFF 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 
• Daily office duties 

 



2 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 86 clinic visits this month.  

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• December Nurse Newsletter sent out “Decreasing Stress during the Holidays”  
• 15 Annual Hearing Screens completed 
• Parks/Rec Main/ Lawn Annual hearing screens Dec 6th 
• Fit Test (Make up test) Water Treatment Plant Dec 6th 
• Building and Grounds Hearing Screens Dec 9th 
• Compost Hearing Screen reviews Dec 14th 
• Distribution/ Collection Hearing Screen reviews Dec 16th 
• Holiday Wellness Challenge ends Dec 16th 
• Flu shot administration continues 
• Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screens 

 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• 8 employees Quarantined/COVID positive  
• 5 employees started FMLA  
• 10 routine Blood pressure checks 
• 1 Flu vaccine administered 
• Assisted 1 with finding Primary Care Provider 

 
MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

DRUG SCREENS = 14 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  3 
New Hire non- CDL:  2 
Promotion:  3 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  2 Promotion:  2 
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  2 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 
 

537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44% 1.08% 1.09% 1.45% 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
December 2022 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: January 12, 2022 
 

• Completed Meter Shop technology updates. 
• Completed inventory for four departments. 
• Installed new HP5000 Wide Page Printer for Developmental Services staff. 
• Resolved DCI issue in Investigations. 
• Resolved downtown wireless issue. 
• Updated Cityworks server and software. 
• Migrated Banner Database to a new server. 
• Upgraded Council iPads. 
• Moved ProShop at GMGC. 
• Moved fiber connections and repaired fiber due to rodent damage. 
• Completed initial assessments for HVAC at Public Safety.  
• Replaced two MDTs for GFD. 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Dec 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 01/04/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for December totaled $5,611,605.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for 
our local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $29,361.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $2,835 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,155. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,120. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 512 inspections for the month.  During the month of December, four (4) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 208 permits were issued for the month.    Twenty-three (23) plan reviews 
were completed for December. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
December 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 1/9/2023 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• December capacity unrestricted; masks and distancing recommended, not required. 
• December activity included 22 rental/use days, including 15 public performances. 

o Goldsboro Ballet- Nutcracker 
o CenterStage Theatre- A Christmas Carol 
o Child of the Promise 
o Carolina Sound Concert 
o Embers Concert- Supporting Empty Stocking Fund 
o It’s A Wonderful Life- film showing 

• December COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o Completed:  
 Replace/repair hall, office, parking area lighting 

o In Progress: 
 HVAC: 

• Mini-split installation – scheduling for January 
• Controls upgrade: quote for essential system upgrades being reviewed. 

 Wheelchair lift – to be resolved with new elevator service vendor, Southern Elevator. 
 Theatre Sound and Lighting repairs and upgrades – Foundation to fund. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $149,481:   Labor: $32,893 / Operations: $30,676 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $85,912 
• Total includes one-time budgeted roofing repair expense of $22,500  

Revenues: -$99,030:   Tickets: -$92,104 / Rentals: -$4,879 / Concession: $2,047   
 

  Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-
23 Apr-23 May-

23 Jun-23 FY 23 
Total 

Average 

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325               $237,216 $47,443 

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098               $117,895 $23,579 

  21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-
Mar 22-Apr 22-

May 22-Jun FY 22 
Total 

Average 

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442 

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960 

 
 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
December - 2022 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 1/12/23 

• This will be the last month we list programs occurring at Herman Park Center as it has officially closed.  
Those programs will take place at other locations including but not limited to TC Coley, WA Foster, 
Goldsboro Event Center 
 

• Mature Adults (50+) took a trip to the Rudy Theatre to see “Christmas Jubilee” – 17 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted seventeen (17) events during this month – 2,093 guests and nine 

(9) City events – 775 guests 
 

• GEC brought in $8,736 in revenue during this month 
 

• Jingle in the Park was held on Friday, December 2nd and Saturday, December 3rd in Herman Park –     
5,000 participants 

 
• Special Populations (Adults) took a trip to Carolina Premium Outlets – 24 participants  

 
• Registration for our winter Youth Basketball League concluded this month 

 
• Goldsboro Golf Course finalized the relocation of its Pro Shop 

 
• Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted an NCYSA tournament this month: NCYSA Kepner Cup –      

32 teams 
 

• Youth Karate classes occurred on Tuesdays this month – 73 participants  
 

• Indoor Soccer held on Sunday, December 18th – 100 participants 
 

• Teen Christmas Jam occurred on Wednesday, December 21st – 50 participants 
 

• Mature Adult (50+) Card Groups played Canasta and Pinochle this month – 75 participants 
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during this month – 721 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean all park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

 



 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Herman Park Recreation Center  
Program Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990  $3,614 
Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0   $0 $450 $450  $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470  224 286 468 390 292  386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652   $4,485  $6,948 

                            

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952  $1,322 
Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 $998  $1,238 $513 $1,377  $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268  2814 1825 1719 1579 2325  1779 

Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764
  $15,177 

                            

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855  $585 $585 $585  $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357  $202 

                            

Specialized Recreation 
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $39 $0  $3 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123  179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985  $6,856 $6,064 
                            

Senior Programs & Pools  
Program Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190  $1,606 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271  1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234  $9,621 

                            

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX   
Program Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362  $10,575 
Field / Shelter Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300  $44 
Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425  21478 
Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587  $15,364 
                          \ 

Golf Course  
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 

Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762
  $44,723 

Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936  1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541  1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782  $3,002 

                            

Special Events  
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0  $220 
Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110  0 0  75 766 0 5000  629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861  $577 

                            

TOTAL REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $82,120 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $68,439 

TOTAL EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,906 $96,676 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE 
YEAR $821,268            

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE 
YEAR 

$1,184,113                      

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center               
Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            

 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
December 2022 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  January 17, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 ###### $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

2021 

 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 4 4 1 0 1 10 1
Subdivison 6 3 2 0 0 2 13 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 2 2 17 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 3 1 10 1

Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 3 2 11 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 19 0 330 41

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $955 -$   $15,670 $1,959

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 0 22 194 16

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 192 88 1742 145

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 244 216 2694 225

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 
reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 
permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
December 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  January 5, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for December 2022 were 147, compared to 154 for December 2021. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $133,431 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $18,742 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 72 people and issued 250 citations during the month. There were 10 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 0 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1  2 0 0 2  0 0  1  0 0  1  7 0.6 
Rape 1 2  1  3 1 1   1 1        2  0 3  3  19 1.6 
Robbery 1 2     6  3 5 3  8 2 2  2 5  2  41 3.4 
Aggravated Assault 11 12  20  31 27  20  20  19 25   16 13  13  227 18.9 
Breaking & Entering 25 19  18  26 19  28  24  16    24  17 10  10  236 19.7 
Larceny 92 86        95 118 94  117  106  127 103  162 102  112  1314 109.5 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6  6 7   5 15  21 9 7     9  14 15  6  120 10.0 
Arson 0 1 0   1  0  0  0 0 0  0 0  0  2 0.17 
TOTALS 136 129 149  187  161  192  168  172 166  211 148  147  1966 163.87 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

 

 
Revenue collected for December 2022 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 416.00  
 Fingerprints   $      30.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $      50.00  
             Total     $   496.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
December 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: January 13, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o Flood Barrier footer work has continued. Currently implementing Capital Projects for the 

replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. 
o WTP all Operators are Certified at this time. 
o One vacant position. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily 

flow for December is 6.67-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 7.62-MGD. This puts the 
WRF at 54% capacity. 

o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New 

Hope L/S, Generator at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand 
filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry system.  

o  3 uncertified operators will be testing in March for their certifications. 
o Two vacant positions. 

Compost Facility 
• Two hundred and sixty-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in December 2022. 
• One vacant position. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5

2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3

33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2

20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3

2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3

12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5

32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2

0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7

49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.005

20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0

0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.561

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0

65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8

78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6

0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.387

0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.389

6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1

0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5

0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.92 0.91 1.08 1.09 0.93 1.16 1.13 1.22 0.99 0.97 0.98 1.01 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 14 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 74 47.7
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 107.1 120.6
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 0.00 2.2
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 0.00 5.0
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3 3.6

Public Works Department

December 2022
Prepared by:  Rick Fletcher

Date Prepared: 17 Janurary 2023

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide.  Continued to perform vegetation cutbacks on 
ROW's and sidewalks.  Completed multiple requests and tasks to assist with the golf pro shop move.  

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 37 after hour calls--total of 45 hours. Completed 67 work orders.  

Streets & Stormwater: Storm Water:  Cut Back 200 LF of Vegetation from Ditch on Parkway Dr. LF. Piped ditch @ 140 Woods Mill 
Rd--100 LF of 18" HDPE Pipe. Cleaned 46 catch basins, 6 Manholes & rodded 1,760 LF of Storm Drains.  Streets: Graded Five Dirt 
Streets--Atlantic Ave, Tarboro St, Kadis St, Marshall St and Basil St. Replaced two concrete Pads @ Compost Facility - 176.6 Sq Yds 



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
December 2022 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 1/11/23 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of December by the TTO—388 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in November was $2,081,887 which is up 5.5% YOY. December revenue not 

yet released. 

● For the month of November, the average session duration increased 21.16% compared to the previous 

year. Site visibility increased to 16.14% this month. The keyword "best bbq in north carolina" increased in 

ranking by 16 positions. The keyword "breweries in goldsboro nc" increased in ranking by 3 positions and is 

now ranking #1. December SEO report not yet released. 

● Attended and supported the COG Employee Appreciation Breakfast 

● Amanda met with Robin Gurgainus to discuss Artist information for NC Freedom Fest 

● Entered award submissions for NCAF&E’s ShowFest 

● Locked in date and location for the 135th Colored Troop Civil War Trail Marker celebration 

 

 

             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $77,982       $540,820 $90,136 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - % 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

MELVIN DAWSON AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 20 YEARS

WHEREAS, Melvin Dawson retires on February 1, 2023 as a Traffic Signal Technician Il, with more

than 20 years of service, with the Engineering Department; and

WHEREAS, Melvin began his career on December 4, 2002 as a Building and Traffic Maintenance
Worker with the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2004, Melvin was promoted to Radio Signal Technician with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2007, Melvin was promoted to Senior Building and Traffic Maintenance with
the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 3, 2010, Melvin was transferred to Signal System Maintenance Technician with
the Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2014, Melvin was transferred to the Engineering Department; and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2022, Melvin was reclassified as Traffic Signal Technician II with the

Engineering Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Melvin has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the

admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Melvin Dawson their deep
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that we express to Melvin Dawson our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and
good health in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this 23` d

day of January, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk






	Agenda 01-23-23
	ws item a - HOME ARP
	ADPDFE5.tmp
	Commission on Community Relations & Development��
	CCRD Home ARP Recommendations
	The CCRD would like to thank the Council and City Manager for trusting us and allowing us latitude to continue to serve the communities and City of Goldsboro.


	ws item b - TC Coley Update 2023
	Slide Number 1
	BACKGROUND
	PARKS AND RECREATION PROGRAMMING
	T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER
	T. C. COLEY COMMUNITY CENTER NOW
	Slide Number 6

	Item A - Minutes 1-9-23
	Item B - J&J
	Item C - Street Closing
	Item D - NPO Policy
	Item E - CDBG Public Service Policy
	Item F - CDBG Rehab Manual
	Item G - Golf Vending
	Item H - Boiler
	Item I - Firing Range
	Item J - Annex  - Chad Post
	Item K - Annex - JD Gupta
	Item L - B&C
	Item M - Monthly Departmental Reports -DECEMBER
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page-DECEMBER
	Inspections MoRepDec2022

	Item N - Melvin Dawson Retirement RES
	Item O - American Heart Month 2023
	Item P - Year of the Trail 2023 Proclamation



